
 
 

Leighton-Linslade 
Partnership Committee 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council and  
Central Bedfordshire Council working in 
partnership  

 

 
1 April 2021 
 
To:  Members of the Partnership Committee (Councillors C Palmer, T Morris, 
S Hemmings, S Owen, F Kharawala, R D Berry, A L Dodwell, V Harvey, B J Spurr and 
E Wallace) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Partnership Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 15 April 2021 commencing at 7.30 pm. This will be a remote meeting 
held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local 
Authorities and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of 
Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020.  
 
 
https://tinyurl.com/ckjr2n4n or by tel: +44 20 3795 5672 (Conf. ID: 915 524 502#)  
 
 
 

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

https://tinyurl.com/ckjr2n4n


Leighton-Linslade Thursday, 15 April 2021 

Partnership Committee 
 

 

 
 

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Partnership 
Committee meeting held on 4 February 2021 (attached).   

 
(b) To receive any updates arising from the minutes. 
 

5.   TIDDENFOOT WATERSIDE PARK (Pages 9 - 20) 

 

 To receive a report from Howard Hughes, Active Lifestyles Manager at CBC on 
the outline concept of a visitor facility at the Park. 
 

6.   PLACE SHAPING  

 

 To receive a verbal update from Sam Caldbeck Place Programme Manager on 
CBC’s approach to Place shaping. 
 

7.   CONSIDERATION OF HOW PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE ENGAGES IN 

SECTION 106 MATTERS (Pages 21 - 28) 

 

 (a) Partnership Project List, (Ref: 76/LLP) 
(b) Community Facility funding  
 

8.   COMMUNITY FORUM UPDATE (Pages 29 - 34) 

 

 To receive an update on Community Forum work activity (verbal). 
 

9.   STANDING ITEMS  

 

 To receive if available, updates on standing items. 
 

10.   COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORKPLAN (Pages 35 - 42) 

 



Leighton-Linslade Thursday, 15 April 2021 

Partnership Committee 
 

 

 
 

 (a) To conclude the Committee objectives and work plan for 2022 – 2021 
(attached)  
 

(b) To consider items to be programmed into Committee’s the draft work for 
2021–2022 (attached). 

 
(c) Process for requesting items to CBC. 
 

11.   ITEMS FOR REQUESTING ATTENTION BY CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE 

COUNCIL  

 

 To identify and confirm if any requested items for CBC’s attention. 
 

12.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 43 - 44) 

 

 To receive Committee’s budget financial monitoring report (verbal). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Leighton-Linslade 
Partnership Committee 

 
 
 
 

  
 37 
 

 
 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council and  
Central Bedfordshire Council working in 
partnership  

 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 7.30 PM 
 

Present:   Councillors C Palmer 
T Morris (Chair) 
S Hemmings 
S Owen 
F Kharawala 
A L Dodwell (joined meeting 19.52) 
V Harvey 
G Perham (substituting for R Berry) 
E Wallace 

 
Also in attendance: M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 

 V Cannon, Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services 
S Sandiford, Head of Democratic and Central 
Services 
S Hughes, Community Engagement Manager, 
Central Bedfordshire Council 
M Jahn, Committee Officer 
G Borelli, Chair, LB First 
T Humber, Community Forum, part meeting 
S. Lakin, Strategic Transport Manager, CBC 
B Chandler, LB Connect 
J Gelder, Community Action Bedfordshire 
T Keaveney, Housing Solutions, CBC 
C Gurney, Head of Housing Solutions, CBC 
Cllr A Gray 

  
Members of the public: 3 
  

83/LLP APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Berry (substituted by 
Councillor G Perham), Councillor B Spurr and Councillor T Stock. Councillor 
A Dodwell had advised she might be late due to another meeting.  
 

84/LLP DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



38 

 
 Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 

interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. 
Councillor V Harvey declared a personal interest as a member of South 
Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth. 
 

85/LLP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15 
minutes) 
 

 A question was raised regarding the cost and method of car parking charges. 
Only cards could be used for a minimum of 5 hours parking at a cost of 
£3.50. There was no option to use a card for a lesser period of time - only 
cash could be used, which caused inconvenience and annoyance to 
shoppers if they only wanted to park for a short time.  
 
Two members of Local Living Streets Group spoke to raise their concerns 
regarding the future of the temporary pedestrianisation of the High Street.  
There was no clear vision on how this would progress and until the COVID 
restrictions were lifted, the closure could not be fully assessed as to the pros 
and cons of the pedestrianisation.  Consideration should be given to what the 
High Street would look like in the future with more opportunity for cyclists and 
pedestrians and the provision of outdoor seating for cafes and restaurants, 
free of cars, with a greener environment with trees and plants being added to 
enhance the area.   
 
This was a big subject and the residents of the town should be involved in 
decisions once the restrictions had been lifted and all shops could hopefully 
begin trading again and a true vision could be laid out for the future of the 
High Street. 
 
The members of the public were thanked for attending the meeting and 
invited to stay and listen to discussions on pedestrianisation later in the 
agenda. 
 

86/LLP MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 (a) The Committee received the draft minutes of the Partnership 
Committee meeting held on 10 December 2020.  The attendee list would be 
updated as J Gelder, Community Action Bedfordshire had been omitted from 
the list.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Partnership Committee meeting held 
on 10 December 2020 be approved as a correct record and would be 
signed at a later date, when safe to do so.   
 
(b) Significant discussion took place on the content of the previous 
meeting minutes and the outcomes of actions discussed at the Committee 
meeting.  
 

Page 2



39 

The Committee was advised that following discussion about procedure at 
Central Bedfordshire Council, it had been agreed that actions arising from 
joint committee meetings would be passed on to the Monitoring Officer, Mr S 
Rix, to then be taken forward to the appropriate Central Bedfordshire 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. S Hughes advised that a report 
confirming the new process would be brought back to the committee in April.  
 
A comment was made regarding the content of the minutes and the lack of 
specific agreed actions, timescales and outcomes so that Councillors could 
be advised on what would take place following the meeting. It was confirmed 
that the minutes were not a verbatim record of the meeting but a record of 
resolutions and recommendations agreed by the committee by vote.  Every 
effort was made to include a relevant amount of context in meeting minutes 
but any resolutions, recommendations or actions to follow outside the 
meeting could only be included in the minutes if they had been clearly stated 
and agreed by the committee, during the meeting.   
 
A number of specific queries were raised and discussed. 
 
Minute ref 73/LLP (Parking Strategy): It was noted that several councillors 
had raised parking issues at the previous meeting but no specific outcome 
had been agreed or progressed.  A suggestion was made by Councillor 
Perham to move Parking Issues to the Town Council’s Planning & Transport 
Committee as this met every three weeks and was therefore perhaps able to 
pass on parking issues to the local authority more quickly. 
 
RESOLVED to recommend to the Town Council’s Planning and 
Transport Committee that consideration be given to how to seek action 
from the local authority on the parking and enforcement issues raised 
at the December meeting of the Partnership Committee. 
 
Minutes ref 74/LLP Schools for the Future – a question was raised regarding 
when Leighton-Linslade parents would be consulted by the local authority 
over the Schools for the Future proposals. 
 
Minute ref 75/LLP (Informal Town Centre Members’ Group Introduction and 
Update). Following the decision at the previous meeting to establish a formal 
South Side Task and Finish Group, Councillor Palmer advised that one 
meeting had taken place and another was scheduled, with a particular focus 
on the possible development of a community facility. It was hoped that there 
would be further information to report back to the April committee meeting.  
 
Minute ref 76/LLP (Partnership Project List): it was noted that this item and 
S.106 developer contributions were new additions to the Committee work 
plan and clarification was needed on how they would be taken forward, as 
there was no mention of this in the minutes. It was advised that both items 
would be factored in to the committee work plan so that further discussion 
would take place by committee at the appropriate future meetings. 
 
Minute ref 77/LLP (Interim CBC Update Report):  Councillor Owen asked for 

Page 3



40 

an answer to his question from the previous meeting regarding whether there 
was a way of controlling the queueing of taxis the number of taxis in the High 
Street, whether there was a maximum number of taxis which should be 
queueing and whether Central Bedfordshire Council had any control over the 
cleanliness of taxis,  whether there was any limit to how many licenses were 
issued by CBC and whether taxis were regularly inspected for cleanliness.  
Sarah Hughes, CBC, would follow this up and get back to Committee. 
 
It was confirmed the Town Clerk had spoken to Inspector Gurr, Bedfordshire 
Police, regarding taxis idling engines and Inspector Gurr confirmed the police 
would follow this up. 
 
A further concern was raised regarding the pedestrianisation of the High 
Street and that actions promised in summer 2020 had not been completed 
(installation of benches, clarification on management of planters and supply 
of extra keys for the bollard installed at the bottom of the High Street).  A 
suggestion was made to write to the relevant Portfolio Holder or the Chief 
Executive of Central Bedfordshire Council to ensure action was taken on 
these points. 
 
RESOLVED to write to Central Bedfordshire Council regarding the delay 
in completion of the agreed actions promised in relation to the 
temporary pedestrianisation of the High Street (provision of benches, 
management of planters and provision of additional bollard keys). 
   

87/LLP HIGH STREET PEDESTRIANISATION UPDATE 
 

 (a) The Committee received a verbal update from Steve Lakin of Central 
Bedfordshire Council on the revised timescales for reviewing the 
experimental traffic regulation order closing the High Street to traffic.   
 
Mr Lakin confirmed the Experimental Traffic Regulation Order could only stay 
in force for 18 months and during this time it would be monitored and 
assessed.   At the end of the 18-month period, the ETRO could be allowed to 
lapse or be made permanent.  It was further clarified that any formal 
objections about the ETRO needed to be submitted within six months of the 
start date.  
 
The ETRO had last been amended on 30 September 2020 so any formal 
objections would need to be submitted by 30 March 2021 and if not further 
amended, the end date for the ETRO would be 30 March 2022.  As this was 
a temporary order, no permanent changes would be made to road markings 
and options would be considered on the impact on surrounding roads and 
whether other restrictions could be implemented, for example timed 
restriction, taxi parking and changes to bus routes.   
 
At the end of March 2022 this order would end and if needed, another could 
be put in place. With Bedfordshire firstly in tier 4 restrictions from December 
and then subject to the national lockdown since January, the High Street was 
not currently operating normally and it was considered too early to consult 

Page 4



41 

with the public until COVID restrictions had been lifted and “normal” shopping 
habits resumed.   
 
RESOLVED to note the information.   
 
(b) The Committee received and considered a report from Councillor 
Owen proposing that CBC and LLTC undertake jointly to organise a 
consultation to take place into whether the pedestrianisation would become 
permanent and to ensure that the town had a voice in this decision. 
 
A proposal was made by Councillor Owen for the local authority to produce a 
well-prepared document that set out options for the post-COVID permanent 
use of the High Street, with benefits and disbenefits carefully assessed, 
along with a plan for a thorough and wide-reaching consultation with the 
public and all other stakeholders.  Following discussion, the motion was 
seconded and put to the vote. The resolution was passed (6 for, 3 against). 
   
RESOLVED that Central Bedfordshire Council be requested to produce 
a well-prepared document setting out options for the post-covid 
permanent usage of the High Street, with benefits and disbenefits 
carefully assessed, along with a plan for a thorough consultation with 
the public and other stakeholders. 
 
Councillor Harvey asked whether any further amendments could be made to 
the ETRO before the objection deadline of 30 March 2021 to improve access 
to the High Street for disabled people and bus users. Mr S Lakin advised that 
specific recommendations as to how the ETRO might be modified would 
need to be made. For example, was it being suggested that blue badge 
holders should be allowed vehicular access to the High Street.  As the 
Partnership Committee would not meet again until April, it was agreed that 
the Town Council’s Planning and Transport Committee be asked to consider 
this matter further.  
 
RESOLVED to request that the Town Council’s Planning and Transport 
Committee give consideration to making recommendations to Central 
Bedfordshire Council regarding possible modifications to the ETRO 
currently in place for the High Street, to improve access for disabled 
people and bus users, before 30 March 2021.  
 

88/LLP HOMELESSNESS/BLACK HORSE AND FOODBANKS 
 

 The Committee received and considered an update from Charlotte Gurney 
and Tony Keaveney on Central Bedfordshire Council’s Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Plan from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020.      
 
During the time when the pandemic and first lockdown began, a campaign 
was set up called ‘everyone in’ where CBC had offered accommodation to all 
known rough sleepers. Since the 23rd March 2020, accommodation has been 
offered to 93 individuals who were either rough sleeping or at risk of rough 
sleeping and 44 of them had been supported into long term accommodation.  

Page 5



42 

During the first lockdown it had been found that approximately 70% of 
approaches had come from single persons, with the main reason being 
eviction by family/friends. Once restrictions eased it was felt that more 
families would find themselves without housing as landlords would start to 
take eviction action.  As the eviction ban has remained in place, the Housing 
Service was still anticipating this increased demand from families.  To enable 
a joined-up response to rough sleeping, services had formed a Tasking 
Group so they could pool resources and work together to offer a better 
service and a greater understanding of the support needed for those 
threatened with homelessness and for those who sleep rough. 
 
Members thanked Charlotte Gurney and Tony Keaveney for their continued 
hard work and the great service they offered to the vulnerable in Leighton 
Buzzard and Linslade.   
 
RESOLVED to note the information. 
 

89/LLP CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL UPDATE REPORT 
 

 The Committee received an update report from Central Bedfordshire Council 
on matters relating to the parish, including information in respect of social 
care, health and housing, crime figures, antisocial behaviour, business rates, 
car parking, transport matters, community services, waste, schools, public 
health and services to young people.  Sixteen COVID stewards had been 
recruited to support businesses and the public in increasing understanding of 
COVID public health measures and gather intelligence and feedback to CBC 
officers. 
 
Questions were raised regarding when parents would learn about the 
“Schools for the Future” proposals for Leighton Buzzard, the commercial 
property uptake in the town and the conversion rate giving last year’s figures 
and list of vacancies, the increase in litter and how this could be addressed in 
future, the number of NEETS, whether the local authority was involved in the 
marshalling of Rushmere Park, if NHS Health checks would resume as a 
priority when able to do so and what assistance could be given to 
shopkeepers with COVID enforcement.  Sarah Hughes, CBC would follow up 
these questions and report back to members. 
 
Thanks were given to Sarah Hughes for her informative detailed report. 
 

90/LLP COMMUNITY FORUM UPDATE 
 

 The Committee were informed that a decision had been made not to wait 
until the end of lockdown to resume the Youth Consultation in conjunction 
with TACTIC and CBC services to help understand what young people 
wanted within the town. 
 
RESOLVED to note the information. 
 

91/LLP STANDING ITEMS 

Page 6



43 

 
 (a) Market Town Regeneration Fund - there were no updates on this 

project since the last meeting but work was on-going and it was hoped it 
would be completed in the coming months. 
 
(b) S106 Update – members were informed this item would be discussed 
in more detail as a single item at the next meeting on 15 April 2021.  CBC 
colleagues would bring a proposal to that meeting for a Community Project at 
Tiddenfoot to discuss feasibility and views on this project.  Work on the 
Partnership Project List was on-going with CBC colleagues going through the 
list of aspirations and it was hoped to bring this to the April meeting. 
 
A question was raised regarding the presentation given by CBC Planning 
colleagues on 2 September 2020 where town councillors were encouraged to 
make suggestions regarding uses of S106 money for specific purposes and 
to ensure this would be discussed at the April meeting.  Sarah Hughes, CBC, 
confirmed that CBC officers would be attending this meeting, and this could 
then be explored to determine, within S106 constraints, how the money could 
be spent. 
 
RESOLVED to note the information. 
 

92/LLP COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN 
 

 The Committee received and considered the objectives and work plan for the 
municipal year 2020-2021.   
 
Members were informed the next meeting on 15 April 2021 would be a 
themed meeting to discuss S106, so discussion on the Health Focus 
Subgroup would be deferred to the first meeting of the new municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED to note the information. 
 

93/LLP BUDGET REPORT 
 

 The Committee were informed that £500 had been carried forward from 
budget year 2020/2021 to assist with delivery of future Community Forum 
activities in addition to retaining an annual budget of £500 for the financial 
year 2021/2022. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the information. 
 

The meeting closed at 10.10 pm.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2021.  
 
 
 
Chair        15 APRIL 2021 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

Leighton Linslade Partnership Committee 

15 April 2021 

Tiddenfoot Waterside Park 

Report of: Howard Hughes – CBC Active Lifestyles Manager  

Purpose of this report  

To introduce the idea to the committee for developing visitor facilities at Tiddenfoot 
Waterside Park. This includes the potential to bring the site of the derelict stable block 
(Black Barn Stables) in to use. The report summarises initial feasibility work undertaken in 
2020 to identify options that would be optimal for visitors and whether that would be best 
provided on the site of the stable block or elsewhere in the park. 
 
The report identifies a preferred option (2d) at this stage as well as others that have been 
considered as part of the work to date. The report also identifies potential build costs and 
income generation opportunities that could be achieved through annual rents.  
 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
The Committee is asked to: 

1. Note the contents of the report including initial study work and development options. 
2. Consider in principle support for developing visitor facilities at Tiddenfoot Waterside 

Park and to add this project to Big Plan 2 and the partnership project list. 
3. Consider in principle support for the preferred Option 2d. 
4. Consider use of S106 funding identified for south Leighton Buzzard towards the 

construction of the new facilities. 

 

Background information 

1. Tiddenfoot Waterside Park is a former sand quarry on the southern edge of Leighton 
Linslade. The park is 32-acres (c.15 ha) in size. The main feature of the park is an 11-
acre (4.5 ha) lake with paths around it that also connects to the Grand Union Canal 
and other nearby open spaces. With exception of the grass paddock on the northern 
boundary, it is part designated a County Wildlife Site (CWS). It has a mix of acid and 
neutral grass, open woodland and scrub, and dense woodland. The lake has many 
species of wildfowl and other water birds, amphibians and invertebrates. It has a good 
stock of fish, including wells catfish, and is known for the quality of its angling. There is  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

a small play area, exercise stations form a fitness trail around the perimeter route and 
picnic tables in the wooded areas.  

2. The waterside park forms part of the wider Ouzel Valley Park and following recent 
improvement works is now connected through improved paths to Southern Meadows 
and the western section of Grovebury Quarry. 

3. Tiddenfoot Waterside Park is well-used and provides a tranquil setting in which to see 
a wide range of birds and wildlife in a lakeside environment. The park does not 
however currently have anywhere people are able to take shelter, obtain refreshments 
and use toilet or baby change facilities.  

4. The park is also home to the annual canal festival organised by Leighton Linslade 
Town Council. Taking place annually on the last Saturday in July, the festival is a 
popular event. The 2019 festival was a huge success with over 9000 visitors attending 
to enjoy great entertainment, good quality stalls and view the boats on show. 

5. Within the park is a derelict stable block known as Black Barn Stables that is located 
alongside the park’s car park and has been derelict and boarded up since 2004. The 
barns provide an ideal opportunity to bring an unused area of the park in to public use, 
supporting new visitor facilities. 

6. Since 2011 Tiddenfoot Waterside Park has had a very active ‘friends of’ group. Formed 
from park users and based on the membership of a former group, the Friends of 
Tiddenfoot are a non-profit, community volunteer group, formed to advance the 
development of the Park for community use while maintaining, improving and creating 
wildlife habitats within it. They support increasing awareness of conservation issues, 
enhancing community cohesion through involvement and understanding of local 
wildlife, conservation and heritage projects. The group have successfully achieved 
‘Green Flag Community Award’ status for the park for six consecutive years, achieved 
as a direct outcome of their engagement in the management of the site. 

7. The park forms an important part of the Green Wheel master plan and is identified as 
one the key leisure ‘trip generators’ in and around the parish that will contribute to 
providing coherent, accessible and enjoyable alternatives to using the car for a range 
of journeys. Developing visitor facilities at Tiddenfoot provides an ideal opportunity to 
develop/enhance wider green infrastructure assets and engage people with them as 
part of the Green Wheel framework. 

Page 10



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

8. Location map of Tiddenfoot Waterside Park 

 

Feasibility Study 

9. Foster Wilson Architects and Colliers International were appointed by Central 
Bedfordshire Council to develop feasibility stage proposals for visitor facilities at 
Tiddenfoot Waterside Park. The report, which was completed in 2020 describes the 
architectural proposals and options that have been developed in response to the brief.  

10. The work undertaken to date aims to assess how and what facilities might be provided 
and which of the options identified is most feasible to explore in greater detail in order 
to deliver and maintain a sustainable and supported community asset. 

11. The study included looking at the character of the space that might be created given 
the constraints of the location i.e. the physical context plus the character of the site and 
how it could be used to create attractive interior and exterior facilities. Factors like 
views, accessibility to people, accessibility to services, exposure to sun at different 
times of year, and proximity to play areas were considered as part of the study. 

12. The viability of possible uses, how the space (interior and exterior) might be used and 
who might use it was also considered as part of the study.  

13. Socio-demographic data, updated to 2019 shows there is a good family-oriented 
market for the park with about 1,650 people living within 10-minute walk of the car park 
at Tiddenfoot Waterside Park that can be considered “local”. A further c.48,000 live 

Page 11



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

within 10 minutes’ drive. The age profile is slanted to under 60s, with about a quarter 
under the age of 19. That is a normal pattern for a suburban area with relatively high 
appeal to families. Two neighbouring schools, with 1,900 students between them, are 
likely to generate business for café and community facilities from parents and children. 

Survey 

14. The feasibility work included an online survey of residents. It was placed online and 
publicised by the Community Intelligence team of Central Bedfordshire Council. It had 
294 responses, most being users of the park. There were 20 respondents who said 
they never visited the park, 132 who said they occasionally visited the park and 142 by 
people who said they often visited the park. Perusal of the postcodes of respondents 
indicates that there were only a few instances of more than one response per 
household.  

15. Analysis of the context, which included an informative survey of local people, 
ascertained the following: 

16. The park is predominantly a local facility and is likely to remain that way even with the 
addition of visitor facilities. The park attracts people from all over Leighton-Linslade and 
is a valued recreational resource. The visitor survey indicates that the lack of facilities 
limits access for many users, who would find their visit easier and more enjoyable if 
these facilities were available. 

17. Dog walking is a main reason to visit, and a substantial number of dog owners are 
frequent visitors. Response suggested that the addition of a café should be dog 
friendly. A number of respondents also suggested that an area where dogs can roam 
leash-free would be helpful. Dog mess is also noted as an irritation to many visitors. 

18. People otherwise mainly visit for walking, socialising and something to do. The number 
of visitors is not known, but the 274 people who responded to the survey and use the 
park (representing 0.7 % of the population within 10 minute drive) probably account for 
about 25,000 visits a year, so it is likely to be a quite substantial number. 

19. The survey showed high support for a café. One is likely to attract a substantial number 
of additional visits if the offer is of good quality. About 25 respondents to the survey 
indicated an interest in running activities of different sorts at Tiddenfoot if there was 
appropriate space to hire. This included a not-for-profit organisation providing 
performing arts workshops for people with disabilities that are seeking a permanent 
base from which to deliver activities in Leighton Linslade. Others included children’s 
soft play group, art and craft classes, support groups and meeting space for specific 
groups, cycle rental, dog day care/grooming, keep fit classes and music 
recording/lessons and a repair café. 

20. Opinions on possible improvements from the survey shows that toilets were the facility 
that respondents said they were most likely to use. Tea / coffee / refreshments is not 
far behind, with slightly more appeal to occasional users than regular users. Substantial 
numbers envisaged having breakfast and lunch at the park. Substantial proportions 
envisaged using improved playground facilities as well as community event and 
exhibition space. 

 

Page 12



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

Facility Options Considered 

21. Three main options for what might be done at the park were explored in the study, with 
variations under each. It should be noted that these are at feasibility study stage only 
and any of the options taken forward will require further detailed survey work.  

 

OPTION 1 – REBUILDING BLACKBARNS STABLE BLOCK 

22. The first was rebuilding Blackbarns stable block (a better option than reconstructing the 
existing building) to provide a café and range of other of spaces around an attractive 
courtyard. 

 

23. The café would be dual facing, looking into the courtyard on one side, and over the 
paddock on the other, with external seating on either side. The other spaces could be 
hired to people wanting to put on activities, either on a one-off basis (eg childrens 
parties) or on a regular basis (e.g. weekly exercise classes). They could be divided 
between “clean” (for activities like dance and meetings) and “messy” (for activities like 
painting and repairing). They would best be managed by the café operator. The 
response to the survey suggested there would be strong demand for this. It would have 
the advantage of attracting a substantial number of people to the facility, which would 
make the café more sustainable. The spaces could alternatively be let for workspace of 
different types. The activities centre option seems to have most potential both 
financially and in terms of contribution to the community. The courtyard itself is suited 
to regular small scale activities. 

 

OPTION 2 – SMALL CAFÉ 

24. This would be a new building immediately adjacent to the car park. It would include 
public toilets which would be run by the café operator. Three variations of this are 
explored; 

 A kiosk without internal seating. 

 A small café with internal seating. 

Page 13



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 A small café with internal seating and a community events room. 

 

25. The various option 2 designs could be achieved using modular construction, made in a 
factory and transported to the site. This could cost substantially less, although the 
overall cost may not be much different to new building of lower specification, matching 
that of the modular form. 

 

OPTION 3: LARGER CAFÉ 

26. This would be a new building in the paddock, below gives an idea of what it could look 
like. 

 

27. It could also be modular, but that would probably not be optimal from an architectural 
perspective in such a prominent location. 

28. It is envisaged that, under any of the options, the property would be let to one or more 
organisations and they would pay rent. It may be preferable, given the uncertainty of 
how well they might do, for rent to be a base plus a percentage of turnover that 
escalates as turnover increases. That would make it more likely that the business is 
sustainable while giving CBC higher return should it do well. 

Page 14



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

29. Table showing feasibility stage construction costs and rental income potential for 
options 1ab,2abc and 3. 

 

30. Options 2 and 3 would allow the stables to be demolished and the car park extended, 
adding about 37 spaces. The estimated cost of that is c.£503,000. 

31. The study considered the possibility of locating a café alongside the lake. A small café 
of similar size to option 2b might be possible on the west side. While however there 
would be the advantage of views over the water, the site would be constrained and 
access difficult. There would be disturbance to wildlife and anglers and greater risk of 
vandalism. Location alongside the car park is considered a better option. 

MORE DETAILED OPTION 2d (preferred option) 

32. More work was done on Option 2c – small café, community room & public toilets after 
the draft report, creating Option 2d. As well as increasing the footprint and flexible use 
of the building, the proposed location was moved so that the development is on 

Page 15



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

brownfield land of the existing car park and stables block without encroaching on the 
field. The design is for a café that has an internal and external seating area with an 
extended community room. The community space has folding doors to the cafe, so can 
provide additional cafe seating if required.  

 

 

33. The new building and planting will help to screen the car parking from the park. The 
cafe has views over the field and provides a sheltered space for children’s play away 
from the car park. It is intended that the cafe is a bespoke design of timber frame, 
timber cladding and a green roof to emphasise the environmental intent of the park. 
The building will have a low outline against the sky and a very minimal impact in the 
landscape. Overall the scheme will greatly improve the visitor experience to the park 
and provide the facilities identified as necessary within the visitor survey. 

34. Construction costs and rental income potential for option 2d is detailed on the following 
table; 

Page 16



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

Observations from the initial options 

35. Option 1 (developing the stable block) was initially identified as potentially the best way 
forward as it provides the greatest opportunity to extend use of the site. The location 
and ability to attract park users however is not ideal as it is tucked away in the corner of 
the park and unless arriving by car will be less accessible. It is the largest but also most 
expensive option and providing visitor facilities using the existing footprint removes the 
ability to increase parking capacity without encroaching in to the paddock area. 
Reconstructing the stables would also not offer enough space to be able to create an 
arts / artisan hub of significant size. 

36. While Option 3 creates an iconic destination building, the option was dismissed as it 
still means developing on fresh ground within the park, affecting the County Wildlife 
Site and leaving the current derelict stable block unchanged. it also means extending 
utilities further into the site creating extra costs regarding sewers, power and water 
supply etc. 

37. Option 2 (a,b and c) are more affordable and possibly more accessible in location – it 
was felt a further option (2d) should be developed and investigated further. While the 
other versions of option 2 are not dismissed at this stage it was thought that building on 
fresh ground within the park should be avoided if possible and instead utilising part of 
the current derelict stable block. We dismissed the option of having a lakeside option, 
as this would be directly impact on the Country Wildlife Site (CWS) acidic grasses area 
and lakeside vegetation, also extending the utilities services further into the site. 

38. It is felt that option 2d gives a better location regarding impact on the overall site, uses 
the derelict space for car parking and potentially more acceptable to Planning. It also 
provides scope to consider wider community engagement opportunities with groups 
looking for activity space. This provides the potential for generating more income and 
financial sustainability. 

Feedback from Planning 

39. The options outlined in this report were submitted for initial feedback from the Planning 
Department. The main points are: 

(i) Any expansion on the site into greenbelt will need to demonstrate very special 
circumstances. 

(ii) A planning application would need to explain (in relation to issues of sound and 
wildlife disturbance) the reasons that building a cafe next to the lake itself is not 
considered a better option. 

Page 17



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

(iii) Improvements to the car park, including planting and some expansion to meet 
anticipated demand should be considered as part of the proposals for the cafe. 

(iv) Site clearance of the stables structure should be considered to offset the 
construction of the new cafe. 

(v) A building in this setting should be of high-quality design. 

Feedback from Ouzel Valley Park (OVP) Steering Group 

40. An outline report on the feasibility study to develop visitor facilities at Tiddenfoot was 
presented to the OVP Steering Group on 1 February 2021. The report focused on the 
preferred option 2d. 

41. While members of the steering group were generally supportive of the idea in principle, 
it was noted that this is not currently identified as a partnership project or in Big Plan 2. 
Members also requested more detailed information including the alternative options 
that were included in the feasibility stage report. The OVP meeting proposed that a 
more detailed report be included at the Leighton Linslade Partnership Committee. 

42. Other comments included the need for any development at the site to maximise the 
opportunity for promoting and supporting walking and cycling, particularly as cars 
travelling to the site must use Mentmore Road which is a no through road in a 
residential area. 

Link to strategic priorities  

43. The Leisure Strategy Chapter 2: Recreation and Open Space Strategy assesses the 
provision of and need for open spaces in terms of their recreational usage and value. 

44. The strategy seeks to ensure that all residents of Central Bedfordshire have good 
access to a range of high-quality recreation and open space. The provision of new 
facilities or the enhancement of existing facilities that take into consideration the 
accessibility, quantity, and quality of facilities for residents. 

45. The Strategy identifies Tiddenfoot Waterside Park as a location that would benefit from 
enhanced facilities. 

46. The Outdoor Access Improvement Plan (OAIP) sets out how Central Bedfordshire 
Council will manage access to the countryside to make Central Bedfordshire a great 
place to live and work. This includes increasing use and enjoyment of the countryside 
for fresh air, relaxation, recreation, health and exercise. The OAIP identifies that 
existing sites will be enhanced to complement the intrinsic qualities of the landscape, 
its history and biodiversity whilst meeting the demands of local communities and the 
growth agenda. 

47. The project is however not currently included as a Leighton Linslade Partnership 
Project or listed in Big Plan 2. 

48. The South Bedfordshire Local Plan seeks to improve and protect existing facilities to 
ensure access to informal recreation in the countryside by: 

(i) making provision for additional informal countryside recreational facilities and 
spaces. 

Page 18



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

(ii) improving access for walkers, horse riders and cyclists to the wider countryside 
for recreational purposes.  

(iii) enhancing the landscape, improving habitat management, resolving problems of 
public access and increasing the informal recreational and amenity value of the 
countryside - particularly close to urban areas. 

Costs and Funding options 

49. Using option 2d, the construction cost at this stage is estimated at £1,249K. This 
includes a budget figure of £503K to demolish the stable block building and improve 
the car park. There are also likely to be additional fees. If the proposal to develop 
facilities at the park is approved, a more detailed cost analysis would need to be 
undertaken as part of detailed design work stages of the project (RIBA stages 2-4). 

50. In terms of funding opportunities, Tiddenfoot Waterside Park is in the vicinity of the 
Grovebury Rd 17a 17b site and fits the definition of those S106 agreements. There is 
currently circa £1m of unallocated S106 Community facility funding available, the 
majority of which are funds relating to 17a and 17b. While this funding has been 
earmarked for Tiddenfoot Waterside Park it is subject to further discussion and 
engagement before it can be confirmed. 

51. Even if all the potential S106 funding is allocated to the project, option 2d will still 
require additional funding. One option could be external grant funding, this will be 
dependent on available grants which are also likely to be competitive and at this stage 
none have been identified although further investigation is still needed. The other 
option is to submit a detailed business case as part of the MTFP process (Medium 
Term Financial Plan) to seek funds from the council’s capital programme. The next 
opportunity to do this will be for the 2022/23 financial year. This is likely to require more 
detailed analysis of the costs and sustainability as well as input from the council’s 
Assets team to take a bid forward. 

Conclusion and next steps 

52. The feasibility study indicates that there is a good catchment in the area, especially for 
a park café offer of good quality. The immediate proximity of schools is likely to provide 
opportunity for families local to the area. It is likely that an attractive café would become 
a popular social hub. 

53. The response from the survey supports this. It indicates a high level of interest in a café 
and there was also a good level of response to a community space. This provides 
opportunities for further engagement with specific user groups to support an extended 
range of activity in the Leighton-Linslade area. 

54. There does not seem to be an attractive option for locating a new café close to the 
water. The north and east banks are the only possibilities. The north would be far from 
the car park, making access for supplies etc difficult and creating security problems. It 
would have the advantage of being south facing, but the view is not exceptional 
because of the impact of the power lines. The east would have a better view and 
perhaps could have access from Mentmore Road, but there is only a narrow band of 
space in that area. There would be disadvantage of disturbance to wildlife and anglers 
and possibly greater risk of vandalism. A location by the car park, looking over the 
paddock, seems better on balance. 

Page 19



Leighton Linslade 

Partnership Committee 
 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

55. Clearly there are pro’s and cons for all options. The café with no internal seating isn’t 
ideal as it doesn’t allow for use in bad weather. The rebuilt stables with multi activity 
facility is expensive and offers no space for additional parking. The café with internal 
seating and additional flexible activity room appears to offer the best option. 

56. Should the committee agree that developing visitor facilities at Tiddenfoot Waterside 
Park is worthy of further development and financial support can be secured from 
available S106 funding, the Council’s Assets team will be engaged to identify the 
process and information needed to develop a business case in order to seek the 
additional funding required. 

Page 20



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Project List 
 
The below aspirations were adopted by Leighton-Linslade Town Council at its meeting held on 30 September 2019, or were contained within Big Plan II – the 
parish plan for 2011-2017, adopted by Council on 18 April 2011.   
 
 
CBC Colleagues please use Key  
S106 compliance 
Spending Officer comment 
IDP 
S106 funds currently held with Spending officer name  
Other 
 

 Description Source LLTC Comment January 2020 CBC Comment Dec – Feb 2021 

 Culture, Heritage & Tourism    

1 Cultural and community facility Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 
& Big Plan II 
2010 

This is a long term aspiration 
which might come forward in plans 
for future development of land 
south of the High Street. 
Big Plan II contained an aspiration 
for a better venue for Arts & Drama 
and a conference room. 

Small amounts of village hall SPD 
funds available -S Hughes  

2 Soft play facility Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

A soft play facility of sufficient size 
to be useable by a wide range of 
age groups or needs requires a 
building of suitable size and height, 
ideally in an easily accessible 
location or with car parking. To 
date no such location has come 
forward. 

Commercial provider  

3 Town centre and retail 
improvements 

Big Plan II 2010 Work with partners to implement 
the 2012 Development Brief for the 
south side of the High Street and 
specifically, to attract retailers that 
the town lacks and increase local 
employment opportunities. 

CB/12/02071/OUT – Town centre 
contributions of £85,750 + 
£93,029.62 – Sam Caldbeck  

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



LLTC has asked CBC to present 
an action plan for development of 
the south side in Feb 2020. 

4 Utilise the town’s waterfronts 
for a recreational development 
and support inclusion of a 
small canal boat marina/quay 

Big Plan II 2010 2012 Development Brief for land at 
Bridge Meadow but land not in 
local authority ownership. 
Potential for marina development 
by A505. 

Canal Trust and dependant on 
Connells 

5 Continue to promote 
improvements to available 
hotel accommodation. 

Big Plan II 2010 The Swan Hotel refurbished and 
reopened in 2011. 
Possibility of hotel inclusion on 
land south of the High Street 
development. 

Hotel interest in the Mayfair 
development 

6 Provision of a Tourist 
Information Centre in the town 
centre. 

Big Plan II 2010 Interim solutions include leaflet 
racks at Library and multi-storey 
car park.  
Town centre free WiFi launched 
2020 will provide visitors with fast 
and free access to information. 
 

Potentially funds identified in item 3 
above  

 Social Infrastructure    

7 Improved accommodation for 
TACTIC 

Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

The Hockliffe Street building, 
although centrally located, is 
suitable for limited uses.   

Confirm ownership  

8 Vandyke Road youth club Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

This facility is owned and managed 
by Central Bedfordshire Council. 
However, the Town Council 
continues to review services for 
young people within the parish 
through its Teenage Advice and 
Information Centre. 

Small amounts of village hall SPD 
funds available -S Hughes 

9 Additional cemetery land Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 
& Big Plan II 
2010 

The Town Council has investigated 
and considered a number of 
options for increasing its burial 
capacity.  
Land allocated for this purpose in 
the planning applications for the 
eastern urban extension are not 

Cemetery land in Stearn Land 
development CB/11/04444/OUT  

P
age 22



within the parish boundary & its 
suitability for this purpose is not 
known. 

10 Ensure police resources 
deployed locally keep pace 
with the town’s population. 

Big Plan II 2010 Operational policing decisions rest 
with the Chief Constable of 
Bedfordshire Police. 
The Town Council’s community 
safety budget and Operation 
Dodford framework agreement 
provide a mechanism for ongoing 
communications with the Police. 

 

11 Continue to support the 
implementation of flood 
protection measures for 
Clipstone Brook. 

Big Plan II 2010 Measures implemented by the 
Environment Agency and flood risk 
has been downgraded. 
Situation to be monitored, 
particularly given the development 
on land east of the town. 

 

12 Support the provision of local 
school facilities  

Big Plan II 2010 Central Bedfordshire Council has 
statutory responsibility and is 
developing a Schools For the 
Future programme. 
Potential change from 3-tier to 2-
tier school system under 
consultation.  

Schools for the Future , work ongoing 
with schools through school clusters. 
Presented to LLPC in December 
2020 

13 Ensure the Children’s Centre 
on Vandyke Rd is expanded to 
cope with demand.  

Big Plan II 2010 This rests with Central 
Bedfordshire Council. 
LLTC supports a number of 
initiatives for young children 
including offering subsidised 
facilities to the Mentmore Under 
Fives Playgroup and the Pages 
Play Café.  

Children’s Centre – was relocated a 
while ago and is now on the site of 
Rushmere Park Academy 
 
 
There are a small number of S106 
Childrens Social Services SPD 
contributions available – Fiona Side  

14 Employment land on eastern 
urban extension 

Big Plan II 2010 Big Plan states aspirations to: a) 
Ensure that designated 
employment land on the plans for 
East of L-L will use local 
apprentices who have been unable 
to find work; b) secure mixed use 

Raise with Business Support and 
Procurement colleagues re any 
potential through Social Value 
clauses  

P
age 23



commercial/industrial/office 
development; c) provide starter 
units for small businesses. 
 
Whilst land has been designated 
for employment uses, these 
aspirations will be dependent upon 
market forces and third parties. 

15 Support evolution of the town 
library as a community facility 
offering a range of services 

Big Plan II 2010 This rests with Central 
Bedfordshire Council which has 
responsibility for the Library 
service. 

Daniel Waller is the Library Service 
Manager. Registration service 
already moved to the Library 

16 Ensure land is set aside in 
major developments for future 
community needs such as 
leisure & recreation. 

Big Plan II 2010 Ongoing through the planning 
process. 

Land East has community provision  
TWP feasibility study  

17 Ensure social and community 
infrastructure is available in 
first phase of future 
developments. 

Big Plan II 2010 S.106 developer contributions 
determined and trigger points set 
by Central Bedfordshire Council. 

Community Facility triggers have 
been shared with LLTC for 
community provision. 

18 Ensure any Central 
Bedfordshire planning strategy 
incorporates many of the Big 
Plan requirements deemed 
essential for future growth. 

Big Plan II 2010 LLTC continues to review and 
comment upon emerging Central 
Bedfordshire planning strategy and 
has made representations in 
respect of the draft Local Plan. 
 
Big Plan II outlines proposals for 
the provision of community 
facilities including shops, 
healthcare facilities, bus stops, 
play areas & other recreational 
opportunities, as well as 
supporting sustainability in terms 
of energy and transport. 

This document has been shared with 
the Head of Planning for IDP 
purposes 

Green 
Infrastructure, 
Sports & 
Leisure 

   

P
age 24



19 Skate park improvements Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

The current skate park is nearing 
the end of its useful life. Being 
located on a flood plain, options for 
its replacement are limited. 
Demand for this facility needs to 
be ascertained and options 
explored. 

Small amounts of Recreational Open 
Space SPD contributions available – 
Lisa White 
Need confirmation of when new 
skate park is required (based on 
evidence of need/demand) to see if 
this could be provided within a new 
development site. If not provided on 
new development, the TC will need 
tell us where they want it along with 
estimated costs, if s106 is to be 

sought from new development. 
20 Additional allotment land Council 

resolution 
30/9/2019 
& Big Plan II 
2010 

The Town Council currently has 
minimal waiting lists but will assess 
likely future demand. 

Allotment land provision in Stearn 
Land permission CB/11/04444/OUT  

21 Leighton-Linslade Green 
Wheel 

Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 
& Big Plan II 
2010 

A long term partnership ambition 
through the Ouzel Valley Park 
Steering Group, the revised Green 
Wheel Masterplan is currently 
under consultation.  
LLTC purchased Peace Meadow 
to secure this green space. 

Green Wheel provision in Clipstone 
Park development CB/11/02827/OUT 

22 Restoration of Henry Finch 
Memorial Fountain in Linslade 
Recreation Ground 

Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

External funding was sought as 
part of the 2018/19 improvement 
programme for Linslade 
Recreation Ground, but was 
unsuccessful.  

Community Asset Grant scheme 3rd 
bidding round planned for Spring / 
Summer 2021 

23 Secure a new leisure centre as 
part of the development to the 
East of the town 

Big Plan II 2010 The Principal Authority through its 
Leisure Strategy is working toward 
the delivery of a commensurate 
level of appropriate facilities 
sufficient to meet existing and 
future need.  

In capital programme 

24 Provision of clubhouse and 
launching site for Canoe Club 

Big Plan II 2010 No suitable site or funding has as 
yet been identified.  

 

P
age 25



25 Continue to search for a 
suitable site for a club quality 
athletics track & facilities 

Big Plan II 2010 The Principal Authority by way of 
its Leisure Strategy is aware of this 
aspiration. Any future leisure 
centre site should where possible 
include provision for athletics.  

 

26 Consider potential for a 
woodland cemetery, adventure 
play area, campsite & parking 
at Rushmere Country Park. 

Big Plan II 2010 Central Bedfordshire Council and 
The Greensand Trust co own and 
manage the site. 
LLTC input through Rushmere 
Parishes Group and Ouzel Valley 
Park Steering Group. 
Car parking extension completed 
and play provision continues to 
develop. 

 

27 Continue to restore sand pits 
in and around town to public 
open space. 

Big Plan II 2010 Central Bedfordshire Council 
liaises with quarry operators and 
land owners on this. 
LLTC kept advised as part of the 
Sandpit Steering Group which 
meets on a quarterly basis. 

 

28 Continue to promote greening 
and wildflower planting. 

Big Plan II 2010 LLTC has a service level 
agreement with South 
Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth 
which includes the management of 
several wildflower and bee friendly 
sites on LLTC owned land. 

CBC Tree Planting Grant scheme 

Sustainability    

29 Recycling of cups and glasses 
at events 

Council 
resolution 
30/9/2019 

The Town Council will encourage 
traders and suppliers at its events 
to move towards more sustainable 
options in line with the Council’s 
environmental ambitions. 

 

30 Support development of a 
small wind farm close to the 
town to supply a proportion of 
local electricity needs. 

Big Plan II 2010 One wind turbine established; 
second proposed. Solar farm now 
operating just outside the Parish. 

Further discussion with Head of 
Sustainability 

P
age 26



31 Promote renewable energy 
and sustainable living to 
residents. 

Big Plan II 2010 LLTC seeks to promote activities 
undertaken by local groups in 
respect of sustainability and in 
2019 adopted a set of 
environmental ambitions. 

 

32 Campaign for improvements in 
bus services and community 
transport services 

Big Plan II 2010 Ongoing through groups such as 
the Southern development 
Exemplar steering group. 

S106 funding from South Leighton 
Buzzard development sites and 
provision within East Leighton 
Buzzard sites  

33 Consider a park and stride 
scheme for rail commuters. 

Big Plan II 2010 The Strategic Transport Team at 
Central Bedfordshire Council is 
aware of the added value a park 
and stride facility would bring to 
the parish and is seeking ways to 
try and realise this.  

 

34 Continued investment in the 
Cycling network & 
encouragement of increased 
cycling 

Big Plan II 2010 The Plan contains aims such as 
creation of new routes, promotion 
of cycling, safer routes to schools, 
school travel plans, maintaining an 
up to date map of local cycle 
routes. 
 
Central Bedfordshire Council is 
now appointing a designated 
Cycling Officer for the area. 

Travel Plan requirement within East 
Leighton Buzzard sites  

Health and 
Social Care 

    

35 Healthcare provision Big Plan II 2010 The Plan outlines the wish for a 
community hospital and an 
increase in the number and 
capacity of GP Practices to keep 
apace with the town’s growing 
population. 
 
The CBC East of Leighton 
Linslade Framework Plan identifies 
land for potential healthcare 
facilities and the 2015 CBC 

A large number of healthcare SPD  
S106 contributions held – CCG 
spending officer  
 
Work ongoing to develop a Health 
Hub in Leighton Linslade 

P
age 27



Infrastructure Plan identifies a 
project cost for a GP surgery. The 
size and location of said facility is 
the subject of on-going work by 
delivery partners. The Framework 
Plan also makes reference to the 
Big Plan and its successor 
document.  
 
LLTC has formed a Health 
Services Task and Finish Group to 
encourage progression of 
healthcare provision proposals to 
meet the ever-growing needs of 
the town and its surrounding area. 
Once the group has agreed its 
objectives, these will then be 
shared with the relevant delivery 
partners.  
 
The future provision of a 
healthcare facility/hub has been an 
agenda item on previous 
Partnership Committee meetings 
and remains a town wide priority.  
 

 
 
 

P
age 28



Leighton Linslade 
Partnership Committee 

 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 April 15th 2021 

 

Report Title                             S106 Community Facilities funding 

 

Report of: 

 

Sarah Hughes Community Engagement Manager 

 

 

Purpose of this report  

To outline the S106 Community Facilities funding secured at Land South of Leighton 
Buzzard.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Partnership Committee is asked to note the report detailing the projects funded with 
S106 Community Facility Funds from developments at SB/06/00867, CB/11/02261, 
CB/12/02889  

 

 

1. Introduction  

1.1 The table attached in Appendix 1 outlines the projects which have been funded with 
S106 funds secured from the development Land South of Leighton Buzzard.  

1.2 In summary, these include:  

The Community House  

the Changing Places facility at Parsons Green  

the Kiosk also in Parsons Green. 

Feasibility Study for Tiddenfoot Waterside Park 

Open space and Green Infrastructure 

 

1.3. The table also sets out the definition of each of the S106 Agreements which determine 
how the monies secured should be spent. The spendby date for these funds is 2029 

1.4.Currently there is £950,452.99 unallocated and following the feasibility study officers are 
provisionally earmarking this towards the Tiddenfoot Waterside Park project whilst 
discussions are ongoing with the Town Council and key stakeholders such as the OVP. 

 

   

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



 
 

         1 

SB/06/00867 – Site 17a 
 

Spendby date :  

Schedule S106 definition Received Spent & Committed to Projects Balance 
Sch 2  
Supplemental Deed 
  

Provision management and maintenance 
of sports community leisure formal and 
informal open space facilities in CBC  

£913,904 Grovebury Quarry ( public open 
space) 
£84856.50 In Principle 
PO3100187718 £70,561 spent  
PO3100202783 £8397.50 spent 
PO3200012440 £36385 committed 
Tiddenfoot feasibility 
PO3200012538 £20,725   
 

£693,179.9  
 
 

Sch 8  
Community facilities  
 

Provision management and maintenance 
of community facilities in vicinity of the site 

£212,313 PO320006875 £113,000- LLTC/CAB 
Kiosk Parsons Close spent  

£99313.72  
 

Sch 7 
Supplementary  Community 
facilities  
  

contribution towards the provision of 
community facilities in the development or 
in the vicinity of the application site to 
include 
(a) public art 
(b) the community facilities provided 
pursuant to the eighth schedule of this 
deed 
(c) the provision, management and 
maintenance of public open space and 
associated facilities provided under the 
second schedule of this deed  

£53,342.63 £37,000 – Sandhills Community 
House  
£15,832.63 PO32001045 (LLTC 
Parsons Green Changing Places) 

£0 

Sch 12 
Maintenance of public open 
space  

Provision management and maintenance 
of public open space and attendant 

£158,059.29 £130,971 –allocated for 
maintenance of land maintained by 
CBC 

£27,088.29 

P
age 31



 
 

         2 

 facilities in the development or vicinity of 
the site 

 

CB/11/02261 – Pulford Corner  

Schedule S106 definition  
 

Received Spent Balance  

Sch 6 
Community 
infrastructure  

for the purposes of providing social and community 
infrastructure in the vicinity of the application site 

£26,159.35 £0 £26,159.35  

 

CB/12/02889 – Site 17b  

Schedule Wording  
 

Received   Spent  Balance  

Sch 8  
Community facilities 
 

for the provisions management and maintenance of a 
community facility on the "community Facility Land"(as 
defined in a unilateral undertaking pursuant to section 
106 of the 1990 Act made by (1) C C Trading Limited to 
(2) the Council and (3) the County Council and dated 11 
July 2007) in accordance with the Development Brief; 

DOV 16/4/2014 on SB/06/00867/OUT- replaced 

with Community Facility in the vicinity of the 

application site.  

 

 

£76,938.36 £0 £76,938.36 

Sch 7  
Supplementary 
community facilities  
 

towards the provision of community facilities in the 
Development or in the vicinity of the Application Site to 
include  
(a) public art 

£19,152.13 £0 £19,152.13 

P
age 32



 
 

         3 

(b) the community facilities provided pursuant to the 
Eighth Schedule of a unilateral undertaking pursuant to 
section 106 of the 1990 Act made by (1) C C Trading 
Limited to (2) the Council and (3) the County Council 
and dated 11 July 2007 
(c) the provision, management and maintenance of 
public open space and associated facilities provided 
under the Second schedule of this Deed 

Sch 12 
 

Towards the provision, management and maintenance 
of public open space and attendant facilities in the 
Development or the vicinity of the Application Site 

£47,778.61 

 

£39,167.37 spent on LLTC 
Parsons Green Changing Places  
PO 320010645  

£8621.24 
 
 
 

    950,452.99 

 

CB/11/00501 – Brickyard Quarry – works commenced on site April/May 19 

Schedule Wording  To be collected  

Sch 8  
Community facilities  

for the provision management and maintenance of a community facility on the 
"Community Facility Land" (as defined in a unilateral undertaking pursuant to Section 
106 of the 1990 Act made by (1) CC trading Limited to (2) South Bedfordshire District 
Council and (3) Bedfordshire County Council and dated 11 July 2007) in accordance with 
the Development Brief; 
Despite the acknowledgements as above, Arnold White Estates hereby agrees to permit 
the Council to use both the Site 31 (brickyard Quarry) Community Facilities 
Contribution and the Site 31 (brickyard Quarry) Additonal Community Facilites 
Contribution towards the provision, managment of Community Facilities in the vicinity 
of the Application site which for the avoidance of doubt shall include the Astral Park 
Community Facility. 

DOV 16/4/2014 on SB/06/00867/OUT- replaced with Community Facility in 

the vicinity of the application site. –  

£68,607 -  

Sch 7  towards the provision of community facilities in the Development or in the vicinity of 
the Application Site to include public art 

£13,721.4 to be collected  
£5568.41 received   

P
age 33



 
 

         4 

Supplementary 
community facilities  

(b) the community facilities provided pursuant to the Eight Schedule of a unilateral 
undertaking pursuant to section 106 of the 1990 Act made by (1) CC Trading Limited to 
(2) South Bedfordshire Council and (3) Bedfordshire County Council and dated 11 July 
2007 
(c) the provision, management and maintenance of public open space and associated 
facilities provided under the Second Schedule of a unilateral undertaking pursuant to 
section 106 and of the 1990 Act made by (1) CC Trading Limited to (2) South 
Bedfordshire District Council and (3) Bedfordshire County Council and dated 11 July 
2007. 

 

P
age 34



Leighton Linslade 
Partnership Committee 
 
 
 
 

1 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

LEIGHTON LINSLADE PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE  
  WORK PLAN 2020-2021 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2019-2024) 
  
 

REFERENCE DESCRIPTION  

Purpose 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Objectives 
 
 

 
1. To influence decisions and help shape initiatives and their delivery for the benefit of the whole town taking 

into account the needs of the town, customers, employees, residents, visitors, traders, property owners and 
developers. 

 
2. To develop and encourage public participation and engagement and take into consideration the resident 

voice in the work of the Committee 
 

1. Help improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural vitality of the town 
 

2. Ensure a partnership and collaborative approach to achieve the delivery of town regeneration, including 
influencing Section 106 funding received for town improvements and community facilities. 

 
3. Opportunities to delegate funding decisions to the Committees should be explored, such as Section 106 

received to spend on community facilities. 
 

4. The Committee will make decisions on any joint funding allocated to it. 
 

5. Influence and help shape strategies / plans that impact on the future viability of the town. 
 

6. Provide a forum for briefing Members of the Joint Committee on all key issues affecting the town, at the 
discretion of the Chairman and Vice Chairman. 

 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 10



 

 2 

7. Make recommendations on strategically significant projects to the relevant Council’s decision-making 
committees, including Committees of the Town Council. 

 
8. Develop and maintain joint branding of communication, agendas and minutes. 

 
9. To enable communities to discuss services and influence decisions at the local level as to how these services 

are delivered 
 

10. To provide a forum for two-way communication about public service delivery and the implementation and 
effectiveness of policies affecting the town. 

 
11. Promote resilience by encouraging communities to do more for themselves and champion local solutions. 

 
12. Consider the ways in which proposals and initiatives can help to advance equality of opportunity, eliminate 

discrimination and foster good relations. 
 

 
 

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2018-2019 

02 April 2020  
 
Covid-19 – no 
meeting took place 

Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 

Taxis 

 Business Support update 

 Homelessness/Black Horse and Foodbanks  

 Building Health Partnerships  

 Health Hubs 

 Feedback from Leighton-Linslade Town Council on Health Focus Subgroup  

 Taxis update 
 

4 June 
 
Covid-19 – no 
meeting took place 

Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street 
Taxis 

 Business Support update – always incorporated in the CBC update 

 Homelessness/Black Horse and Foodbanks standing it – agenda item 11 

 Building Health Partnerships  

 Health Hubs 

 Feedback from Leighton-Linslade Town Council on Health Focus Subgroup TBC 

 Taxis - bought forward to February 2020 propose to defer pending learning from 
experimental Temporary Traffic Regulation Order (TTRO), to December 2020, (6 months).  

3 September Business update 
Community Forum update 

 Appointing Chair and Deputy Chair 

 Appointing secretariat  

P
age 36



 

 3 

(moved from 10 
September) 
 

MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 
Taxis 

 Co-option onto Committee 

 CBC update (to include update from Traffic Management re Town Centre TTRO)  

 Town Centre / Enabling Delivery in L-L (Land South of the High Street) update.  
 

10 December Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  

Taxis  
 

 Schools for the Future  

 Parking Strategy update  

 Green Wheel and Cycling Strategies update  

 Land South of the High Street - Informal Town Centre Members Group Update  

 Interim CBC update report – Taxis, Blue Badge Holders, Pedestrianisation & business 
Support 

 Leighton-Linslade Town Council Partnership Project List 

 Co-opted representative guidelines. 

4 February 2021 Co-opted Members update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 

Taxis  
S106  
 

 CBC update 

 Homelessness/Black Horse and Foodbanks  

 High street pedestrianisation update on consultation plans.  

 
 

15 April Co-opted Members update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 

Taxis  
S106 
 

 Confirmation for how L-L Partnership Committee meeting minutes are shared and 
responded to by CBC.  

 Consideration on managing S106 matters through Partnership Committee’s standing item 
agenda   (Ref. 81/LLP) inclusive of; 
- Feedback from CBC on the Partnership Project List, (Ref: 76/LLP) 
- Tiddenfoot Waterside Park – options appraisal 

 
 

 Information report from Leighton-Linslade Town Council on Health Focus Subgroup (work 
Progressing through LLTC’s Task & Finish Group) deferred to 2021/22 

 

   

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 38



Leighton Linslade 
Partnership Committee 
 
 
 
 

1 

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920 
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk    
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

LEIGHTON LINSLADE PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE  
  WORK PLAN 2021-2022 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2019-2024) 
  
 

REFERENCE DESCRIPTION  

Purpose 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Objectives 
 
 

 
1. To influence decisions and help shape initiatives and their delivery for the benefit of the whole town taking 

into account the needs of the town, customers, employees, residents, visitors, traders, property owners and 
developers. 

 
2. To develop and encourage public participation and engagement and take into consideration the resident 

voice in the work of the Committee 
 

1. Help improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural vitality of the town 
 

2. Ensure a partnership and collaborative approach to achieve the delivery of town regeneration, including 
influencing Section 106 funding received for town improvements and community facilities. 

 
3. Opportunities to delegate funding decisions to the Committees should be explored, such as Section 106 

received to spend on community facilities. 
 

4. The Committee will make decisions on any joint funding allocated to it. 
 

5. Influence and help shape strategies / plans that impact on the future viability of the town. 
 

6. Provide a forum for briefing Members of the Joint Committee on all key issues affecting the town, at the 
discretion of the Chairman and Vice Chairman. 

 

P
age 39



 

 2 

7. Make recommendations on strategically significant projects to the relevant Council’s decision-making 
committees, including Committees of the Town Council. 

 
8. Develop and maintain joint branding of communication, agendas and minutes. 

 
9. To enable communities to discuss services and influence decisions at the local level as to how these services 

are delivered 
 

10. To provide a forum for two-way communication about public service delivery and the implementation and 
effectiveness of policies affecting the town. 

 
11. Promote resilience by encouraging communities to do more for themselves and champion local solutions. 

 
12. Consider the ways in which proposals and initiatives can help to advance equality of opportunity, eliminate 

discrimination and foster good relations. 
 

 
 

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2018-2019 

17 June 2021 Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 

Taxis 

 Information report from Leighton-Linslade Town Council on Health Focus Subgroup (work 
Progressing through LLTC’s Task & Finish Group) TBC 
 

9 August  Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street 
Taxis 

 CBC update 

2 November Business update 
Community Forum update 

 

P
age 40



 

 3 

MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 
Taxis 

10 January 2022 Business update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  

Taxis  
 

 CBC Update 

21 April  Co-opted Members update 
Community Forum update 
MTRF update  
Enabling Delivery in L-L 
(Land South of the High 
Street) 

Taxis  
S106  
 

 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 42



Committee ReportMonth No: 12

01/04/2021
12:58

Leighton-Linslade Town Council Page 1
Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 31/03/2021

Actual Year To Date Current Annual Bud  Variance Annual Total Committed Expenditure Funds AvailableActual Current Mth % Spent

Partnership
503 Partnership

0.0%500 5004524 Community Forum 0 0 500
0 5000Partnership :- Indirect Expenditure 500 0 500 0.0%

Net Expenditure 0 (500) (500)0

0 0 500
00 0 0

500
0 0

Partnership :- Income

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve
Expenditure 0 500

0.0%
0.0%

0 500
00 0

500
0 0 (500) (500)

Grand Totals:- Income

Net Income over Expenditure
Expenditure 0 5000

0 0.0%
0.0%

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve 0 0

Page 43

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 TIDDENFOOT WATERSIDE PARK
	7 CONSIDERATION OF HOW PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE ENGAGES IN SECTION 106 MATTERS
	8 COMMUNITY FORUM UPDATE
	8.  b. Community facilities balance and wording for LLTC

	10 COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORKPLAN
	2021-2022 DRAFT Leighton Linslade Partnership Workplan

	12 BUDGET REPORT

